TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

JOINT TRANSPORTATION BOARD

Monday, 3rd December, 2012

Present: Borough Council Members of the Board

Cllr Mrs S M Murray (Vice-Chairman - in the Chair), Cllr Ms V M C Branson, Cllr N J Heslop, Cllr Mrs F A Kemp, Cllr R D Lancaster and Cllr A K Sullivan.

County Council Members of the Board Mrs V Dagger, Mrs T Dean and Mr C Smith.

Borough Councillors Mrs Anderson, Atkins, Balfour, Bishop, Coffin, Cure, Edmondston-Low, Rhodes and Miss Shrubsole were also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21.

Apologies for absence were received from Borough Councillor Mrs Oakley and from County Councillors Mr Homewood (Chairman), Miss A Hohler and Mrs S Hohler.

PART 1 - PUBLIC

JTB DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 12/043

There were no declarations of interest made.

JTB MINUTES 12/044

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Transportation Board held on 24 September 2012 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

JTB WEST MALLING STATION FORECOURT REMODELLING SCHEME 12/045

The Director of Kent Highways and Transportation's report provided an update on the West Malling Station Forecourt Remodelling Scheme and sought the Board's support of the detailed design option prepared by Jacobs in consultation with a Steering Group consisting of County and Borough officers, Southeastern and Network Rail. Mr T Darcy provided a presentation of the proposal and highlighted key improvements to station access, lighting, environment, car parking and integration with bus services. Particular reference was made to the improvement of Station Approach and to the proposed removal of the 'bus gate' on the link road to West Malling Bypass. Members welcomed the proposal to monitor usage of 'through' traffic between the Bypass and West Malling via Swan Street once the scheme had been completed.

It was noted that progress reports would be submitted to future meetings of the Joint Transportation Board.

RESOLVED: That the County Council Cabinet be commended to endorse the preferred detailed design option, together with the removal of the bus gate on the station access road.

JTB PARKING ACTION PLAN 12/046

Decision Notice D120160MEM

The report of the Director of Planning, Transport and Leisure provided an update on the phased approach to on-street parking management across the borough and focused in detail on the West Malling Local Parking Plan Review. The report set out details of a recent review of parking conditions in West Malling undertaken with the assistance of a local Steering Group and identified a number of opportunities to provide additional on-street parking within the town and to amend the regime for short-term parking in the High Street Car Park.

RESOLVED: That the following be commended to the Borough Council Cabinet

- (1) the West Malling Local Parking Plan Steering Group's recommendations for :
 - 1. the on-street proposals set out in the report be approved subject to a reduction of the waiting restrictions in St Leonard's Street;
 - 2. the development of additional on-street proposals, as set out in the report, be approved; and
 - 3. a further report be made six months after the implementation of the above to further consider the use of the Short Stay High Street car park; and
- (2) the 'parking programme' set out in sections 1.11, 1.12 and 1.13 of the report be endorsed.

MATTERS SUBMITTED FOR INFORMATION

JTB TONBRIDGE TOWN CENTRE TRANSPORT STRATEGY - UPDATE 12/047

Further to Minute JTB 12/032 the joint report of the Director of Kent Highways and Transportation and the Director of Planning, Transport and Leisure provided an update on progress with the development of a more focused action plan for the revised transport strategy endorsed at the last meeting of the Board.

JTB A20/SEVEN MILE LANE JUNCTION 12/048

The report of the Director of Kent Highways and Transportation outlined comments received in response to a consultation on proposed

traffic signals at the A20 London Road junction with Seven Mile Lane. It was noted that the County Council had commissioned Jacobs to undertake safety assessment studies and that a further update would be presented to the Board when the results of this were received.

JTB BOROUGH TRANSPORTATION MATTERS 12/049

The report of the Director of Planning, Transport and Leisure provided an update on a number of transportation matters on which the Borough Council had been focusing. Particular reference was made to the Bus Transport to Schools item and the Board noted that the County Council had offered to provide a specific briefing session for Members on an evening to be arranged in the New Year.

JTB HIGHWAYS WORKS PROGRAMME 2012-13 12/050

The report of the Director of Kent Highways and Transportation set out details of schemes programmed for construction by the County Council in 2012/13.

JTB A COMMON SENSE PLAN FOR SAFE AND SENSIBLE STREET 12/051 LIGHTING - THE NEXT STEPS

It was noted that this item had been withdrawn from the agenda at the request of the County Council.

JTB MEMBER HIGHWAY FUND AND TRAFFIC SCHEMES 12/052 PROGRAMNME

The report of the Director of Kent Highways and Transportation provided a summary of the current position on a number of traffic and transportation initiatives in the Borough.

JTB PETITIONS 12/053

The report of the Director of Kent Highways and Transportation provided an update on action taken in respect of a petition from residents of Pear Tree Avenue, Ditton seeking a review of highway safety in the vicinity of Ditton Infant School.

MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PRIVATE

JTB EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 12/054

There were no matters considered in private.

The meeting ended at 2055 hours

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL

RECORD OF DECISION

Decision Taken By: CABINET MEMBER FOR
Planning and Transportation

Decision No: D120160MEM Date: 3rd December 2012

Decision(s) and Reason(s)

Parking Action Plan

(Report of Director of Planning, Transport and Leisure)

(Annex 1)

(Annex 2)

(Annex 3)

The report provided an update on the phased approach to on-street parking management across the borough and focused in detail on the West Malling Local Parking Plan Review. The report set out details of a recent review of parking conditions in West Malling undertaken with the assistance of a local Steering Group and identified a number of opportunities to provide additional on-street parking within the town and to amend the regime for short-term parking in the High Street Car Park.

Following consideration by the Joint Transportation Board, the Cabinet Member for Planning and Transportation resolved that:

- 1) the West Malling Local Parking Plan Steering Group's recommendations for :
- 1. the on-street proposals set out in the report be approved subject to a reduction of the waiting restrictions in St Leonard's Street;
- 2. the development of additional on-street proposals, as set out in the report, be approved; and
- 3. a further report be made six months after the implementation of the above to further consider the use of the Short Stay High Street car park;
- 2) the 'parking programme' set out in sections 1.11, 1.12 and 1.13 of the report be endorsed.

Reasons: As set out in the report submitted to the Joint Transportation Board of 3 December 2012.

Signed Cabinet Member for S Murray Planning and Transportation:

Signed Leader: N Heslop

Signed Chief Executive: D Hughes

Date of publication: 07 December 2012

This decision will come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of 5 working days after publication unless it is called in.